TOWN OF EAST KINGSTON, NH
SELECTMEN'S PUBLIC MEETING MINUTES
MONDAY, AUGUST 4, 2008

ATTENDING: Selectmen Richard S. Poelaert & David R. Pendell(Robert A. Caron absent).

Others Attending: Elizabeth Pruss, Amy RobbinspéyaParker, Ed Warren, R. Scott Urwick & Austin
Carter.

Selectman Poelaert called this Selectmen’s PubdietMg to order at 6:30PM.

MINUTES: The Board reviewed the Selectmen’s Public and-Roblic meeting minutes A & B, dated
July 21, 2008. Mr. PenddilOTIONED to approve and sign the public meeting minutesraten. Mr.
Poelaert seconded. Motion carried 2-0.

Mr. PendelMOTIONED to approve and sign the non-public meeting minAt&sB as stated. Mr.
Poelaert seconded. Motion carried 2-0.

REGISTER: The Board viewed the check register. Mr. Pend@ITIONED to approve and sign the
check register dated 7/23/08 — 8/8/08 in the amotifi67,682.80. Mr. Poelaert seconded. Motiomiedr
2-0.

BUDGET: The Board reviewed the 2008 budget expendittoedate.

LEGAL: The Board acknowledged that of the $50,000 bwdbfetr legal expenses, $37,925 has been
expended, to date.

The Board also reviewed and acknowledged corresgpareddated July 22, 2008 from Town Counsel, along
with the final document filed with Superior Cousthich closes the case of Mazur v. Town of East Kiog.

FIRE DEPT.: The Board acknowledged receipt of copies of ttagy lind June gas logs for the Fire
Department.

DIFEO: It was noted that Difeo Oil sent a technician touprovide estimates for shutting down the heating
systems at the Town Hall and the Railroad Depoldihg for the winter months in an effort to consenil.
Difeo will mail the estimates to the Selectmen’si€af as soon as possible.

CLARK ROAD: It was noted that with the recent heavy raingsident of Burnt Swamp Road has
provided a CD containing photographs of damaged@itoperty from water back up and silt from the
ongoing construction at East Kingston Estates.

The Board received copies of the report from the/T &ngineer, Jay Stephens, and his recommendations
for the contractor. Copies of the report were gisavided to the Conservation Commission ChairnfRogd
Agent, Planning Board, Code Enforcement Officed tre Fire Chief.

Mr. Pendell inquired as to how to enforce the resmndations of the Town Engineer. Mr. Poelaertreffe
that the owner of the development has been verghaimout the recent torrential rains, and thatheying
to do his best to maintain the fire pond. It wated that fresh grass seed was planted in ordeeglpowith
the problem of washout and silt for the new homek,kand the rain washed it all away.

The administrative assistant offered that the T&nmgineer, the Conservation Commission ChairmangCod
Enforcement Officer, Fire Chief, Planning Board a@d\gent, and the Department of Environmental
Services are currently working on a resolutiorhi situation, in conjunction with the developer.

BAN NOTE: The Board noted that correspondence dated Jul®(B received from Bond Counsel,
Devine & Millimet, approved a Bond Anticipation No(BAN) in the amount of $950,000.

Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes — August 4, 2008 — 20080804selpubmirl



ELECTION: The Board received information for a clearande ea double election booths at Merrimack
Valley Wood Products for their review. It was ribtbat this information will be followed-up on with
Chairman Caron, as he was involved with price quiateeived from another company.

CALENDAR: 08/08 — Bi- Weekly Payroll, 08/14 — Accounts RagaProcessing, Bills Due.
LIBRARY TRUSTEES: Mr. Pendell questioned Amy Robbins and Elizalb&tlss about the rate the

Library Trustees used for mileage reimbursemefhieyTresponded that they use the current rate efagd
set by the IRS and the Town of East Kingston, wisoturrently 58.5¢ a mile.

POUND SCHOOL: The Board addressed the “action list” for the Po8obool building, which consists of
22+ items to be addressed. Mr. Poelaert openedstion from Item #1, and Mr. Pendell stated tleatvas
unable to attain the lighting fixtures previouslgaissed, and requests a quote from Eric Thompson o
Thompson Electric for the Board’s review.

Mr. Poelaert added that the light illuminating fteey should be placed on an automatic switch, and M
Pendell agreed.

Mr. Pendell stated he had information regarding agveonditioning wall units, and Mr. Poelaert resded
that the current air conditioners in place shoutdtkasnow that they had been uncovered. Ms. Prudecad
there might be a problem with one of them, asvieis/ noisy, and Mr. Pendell agreed.

Mr. Poelaert inquired if the proposed new air ctinding units were the same as the units recensialled
in the Town Offices building, and Mr. Pendell resded yes, and added they would cost $1,300 per unit
including the condensers, tubing, and pads.

Mr. Poelart asked if they would be 4’ units, and Mendell responded that yes, they would be.

Ms. Parker interjected that the Friends of the dibprasked the Selectmen not to remove certain isigeht
the Pound School building, and when it was notibedshelving was missing, she asked the Fire Ghinef
knew anything about it. The Fire Chief said hemld know about the shelving. Ms. Parker addedisie
thought the shelving may have been stolen and alraperted it to the Police.

Ms. Pruss added the shelving was in the dumpstenesnoved them from the dumpster, and they
disappeared again.

Ms. Parker added the shelves had items on thenthagdad planned to use them for display purposes.

Mr. Poelaert reminded Ms. Parker that the Pouna&dbuilding is a Town owned building, and it is no
longer a library.

Ms. Pruss stated that Chairman Caron asked th#rayfwanted the shelving to remain, and they redggdn
yes. Mr. Poelaert responded that they had spak@nairman Caron, not him, and added they hadrtmth
out 3 computer monitors, etc., which were leftha building when the new library was opened. Hiedd
that there were also many books left behind.

Ms. Pruss added that books were never to be thomyrand they were not notified of a dumpster cgnin

She added that they were to be the first grouséotiie Pound School building. She also statedhiest
were not trying to leave junk behind, and addedotheks belong to the library, not the Town.

Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes — August 4, 2008 — 20080804selpubmir?



Mr. Poelaert stated that the library has been bthebuilding now for many months, and that byapd
August 4", everything belonging to the library should be.otte added they filled half of a dumpster with
items that had to be thrown away, that were |effife by the library. Ms. Pruss reiterated thatais her
belief they were to be the first in the buildingdaherefore, items were left behind.

Mr. Poelaert offered an analogy to moving out obpartment, and that you had to take all your gssses
with you when you moved out, and could not retuonths later to claim what had been left behind, to
which Ms. Pruss took exception. She stated shiedl®ls. Gallant of the Selectmen’s Office of hpening
date over a month ago, and her items should haete dleto leave.

Mr. Poelaert stated everything in the former ligrianilding belonged to the library, and the builgishould
have been completely cleared out by now.

Mr. Pendell stated that he and Tracy Waldron cldan# the building one Sunday, and that Tracy was
trying to get rid of certain items. He added thatold her to leave certain items behind for prapgposal.
He added also that a table was left behind, asstmot needed at the new library building.

Everyone agreed that the removal of the centevsigeivas necessary to make the space better. émdeH
added he and Chairman Caron had a discussion bhettat communications, and that they had discutbeed
removal of shelving, not renovations to the buiidirHe added the building had been cleaned, bu twere
still mouse droppings under the sink and dust ercthling fan.

Mr. Pendell stated that he would “take the hittfos one,” as he helped Tracy clean out the bugldamd
did not follow up on items with her. He added @snhis understanding that Sue St. Martin from the
Historical Committee had stepped back from thigguty and the new contact person is Peter Gilligds.
Pruss responded she would speak to Mr. Gilligan.

To Ms. Parker’s inquiry about the books left behimdhe building, Mr. Poelaert responded all boolese
neatly stacked in a wooden cubby in the building.

Ms. Pruss inquired about items left in the shedtied at the Pound School building, and Mr. Perstated
the carpet was not large enough for the Fire Dapant's use, and he has contacted a rep. of his@oynp
about acquiring carpet tiles, which will be befar“sooty boots.”

Mr. Poelaert inquired as to when the shed woulthbeed, and Mr. Pendell stated Tracy had received a
price of $600 to have the shed moved. He adddthteexplored several other options, and Al's towing
could move it for $200, to which Mr. Warren addkdttAl's would use a flat bed truck. Mr. Poelaagteed
that $200 is a fair price. Mr. Pendell stated tirgject is in “his court.”

Mr. Pendell offered that Tracy wished to presemnverg single book, and Ms. Pruss added they alacedal
an old library register. Mr. Poelaert stated fbeaky register is still in the building.

Mr. Poelaert inquired as to their opening date, ldisd Pruss responded August™and reiterated Ms.
Gallant was informed of this date over a month ago.

Ms. Pruss requested one more key to the buildinthigr use, and was informed that would be fiGée
inquired about a telephone for the building, and Rebbins added there should be a “land line” atelin
case of a power outage. Mr. Poelaert respondedftice would arrange for a local phone line hogk-and
a new wall mounted telephone, and suggested inabe of a power outage that people go home. Ms.
Robbins agreed.

Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes — August 4, 2008 — 20080804selpubmir8



Ms. Pruss inquired about the closet space alldtiekde Friends of the Library, and asked if it wbbk ok to
purchase a padlock for it. Mr. Poelaert agreetivtoauld be fine, and added they were going to thm
pipes in the closet back to be certain to proteeir tboooks from water damage.

Mr. Poelaert asked again when the Friends of theaky were planning to take possession of the spzamk
Ms. Pruss responded that books were already sheMedPoelaert added they would try to provideoard
with a lock, and a key to it.

Mr. Poelaert reiterated the office will call FaippbCommunications to arrange for local serviced arder a
wall-mounted phone. He inquired if there was amglelse to be discussed.

Mr. Poelaert offered the total cost for blowingutaion into the attic to improve energy efficiensguld be
approximately $250. Mr. Pendell added they shiadé at the flashing on the building, as when ihsa
from the east, the building leaks. He added ttedtical Committee’s storage space in the cabindeuthe
chimney is the worst place, and Mr. Poelaert agteey will address the leak. Ms. Pruss agreeaihdact
Peter Gilligan about this issue.

Mr. Poelaert added there is plenty of space toractodate everyone, and that they have come a logg wa
and apologizes for any misunderstandings alongvthe

Mr. Pendell stated that tables and chairs needbd tibtained, and the fire alarm system should be
reactivated. Ms. Hurteau will contact Pulsar toroarto arrange for the reactivation.

In reference to the white metal book deposit bog, Parker suggested it be left in place for boakations,
and Mr. Poelaert agreed with Ms. Pruss and Ms. Relthat it would then have to be emptied on aleegu
basis. Mr. Poelaert suggested Tracy Waldron tdoimate it to another library that could put igwod use,
and everyone agreed.

Mr. Poelaert suggested that the Friends of thealjbcheck the Pound School building on Augugt &2
confirm all issues have been addressed to theafaetion. He added if they need anything elshait time,
they should contact him or Ms. Hurteau, and we talte care of it.

Mr. Pendell inquired if he should go ahead and iotigle air conditioning unit, and Mr. Poelaert susjgd
first checking with Ms. Gallant to be sure the mpiseavailable in the budget.

Mr. Poelaert inquired about the question of themas of the Library being unable to book an apmoénit
on the Selectmen’s agenda for this evening’s mgetidiscussion ensued, and all finally chalkedhgp t
matter to a miscommunication.

At 7:35PM, Ms. Pruss, Ms. Robbins, and Ms. Par&#rthe meeting.

FIRE STATION: Mr. Pendell stated that he and Chairman Carordisaaissed possibly acquiring new air
conditioning units for the rooms located on theflopr of the Fire Station. He added he had agootc
$4,444 to place one unit in the big room, one imihe middle room, and one unit in the Officeld®m,

plus a heat pump, if needed.

Mr. Poelaert stated that this is the first he hearth about this, and reiterated that they musticheth Ms.
Gallant to see if there is money for such expemeguin the budget.

Mr. Poelaert clarified that there is a 5-zone hmgasiystem in place.

Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes — August 4, 2008 — 20080804selpubmirt



Mr. Pendell stated new baseboard units shoulddtalied before someone cuts himself or herself fom. a

Mr. Carter offered that with the original designtioé heating system, they could never control #eg h
upstairs. He suggests looking at the zone system.

Mr. Poelaert suggested they needed to fix the sysiglace. Mr. Pendell stated with the new air
conditioning units, they could get rid of the aanditioners currently in place.

Mr. Pendell inquired if the heating system in placaew, to which Mr. Carter responded, yes, it was
replaced within the last few years.

Mr. Pendell suggested adding a shower for theidingéérs, and Mr. Poelaert added it would be a unise
shower.

Mr. Carter stated that the Selectmen are doing aflplanning, and don’t they think they shouldahxe the
Fire Association in the loop, since it is theirlding?

Mr. Poelaert stated that he didn’t know anythinguhihis until five minutes ago.

Mr. Carter responded that the Fire Association khba in the loop, and it sounds like you do whai y
want to without telling the Fire Association.

Mr. Poelaert offered that he did not know who wribte original lease, but the lease clearly stdteslown
is responsible for repairs and upkeep of the bugijdand Mr. Carter suggested they “not go thekée”
reiterated they had a mutual agreement to leavestligect alone, and Mr. Poelaert agreed.

Mr. Carter added they were talking about major vations without the input of the Fire Associatiand
Mr. Poelaert responded the lease was written trazy” way, and it is the responsibility of the Toto pay
for repairs and renovations and then leave ithalte after the Town’s 99-year lease is up.

Mr. Carter repeated that the Fire Association &ed3electmen has a mutual understanding that bafore
major repair or renovation is planned, the Selentmeuld let the Fire Association know, and Mr. Raet
agreed.

Mr. Pendell stated they would like to paint thea#f's room that Fire Chief Richard is using, and Marter
responded the Fire Association was also planningaaming that very room. Mr. Carter added thahat
Fire Association’s last meeting, there was notpmagentative present from the Fire Department,tand
would help communications if the Fire Departmemit serepresentative to their meetings.

Mr. Poelaert asked Mr. Carter if it would be ok tbe Town to fix the problem with the current hegti
system, to which Mr. Carter responded that he ig one member of the Fire Association and canndtema
independent decisions. Mr. Poelaert agreed thkhbe the Fire Association just wants to be a pathe
process. Mr. Carter stated it appears that thec8een think they can do whatever they want, andoes
not want to pay a lawyer to decipher the lease.

Mr. Carter stated the Fire Association wishes ®thg upstairs kitchen & hall, and the Fire Deparms
also welcome to use them.

Mr. Poelaert stated that the Selectmen are witiingay for anything needed to keep the buildingand
repair, and Mr. Pendell agreed.

Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes — August 4, 2008 — 20080804selpubmirb



Mr. Warren suggested the Board simply send a ladtdre Fire Association with their intentions and
suggestions, and Mr. Carter added to please justda-ire Association know what’s going on.

Mr. Carter used the example of needing an exchahgemmunication as the Fire Association is already
looking at changing the downstairs windows. MreRert agreed more energy efficient windows are
needed.

Mr. Carter, once again, reiterated the Fire Asgmngust wants to be kept in the loop, to justthetm know.
He added they already have new thermo-pane windoWe recently built addition. Mr. Pendell statesl
would check with Chairman Caron and ask him to @cindulie Urwick, President of the Fire Association
and work together on this project.

Mr. Carter offered they should price replacememtdeivs vs. using a carpenter to install new windtvas
differ in size, and Mr. Poelaert agreed and askedQdrter if he would be available Friday, Augu$t ®
meet at the Fire Station and talk about it, to Whie responded he would be available.

Mr. Pendell stated that they were talking aboutgyefficiency, and there is no reason they showldbe
able to install the new air conditioning system.

Mr. Carter offered that the Officer’'s room, is 2620, the kitchen is 16’ x 20", and the meetingmois 30’
x 30'’.

Mr. Poelaert inquired to Mr. Carter if he knewhgtceilings were well insulated, and he indicatedlid not
know.

Mr. Pendell added they could cut 4” holes in thiéirggg and they could blow-in insulation, and Mioétaert
stated it would be similar to what they plan tovdth the old Library, and should cost approximat&B0.

At 8:10PM, Scott Urwick joined the meeting. Hetsthhe had no issues; he was downstairs for the
Conservation Commission meeting, and thought hafdthe meeting.

POLICE DEPT.: The Board reviewed correspondence dated Jul§@®83 regarding Police Chief
Simpson’s recommendation to hire a new part-timepofficer. Mr. PendeIMOTIONED to table this
matter until more information and a current resusrgubmitted. Mr. Poelaert seconded and the motion
carried 2-0. Mr. Pendell and Mr. Poelaert agreecaddress this matter at the next Selectmen’simgee
which is scheduled for Monday, August 18, 2008.

Mr. PendelMOTIONED to adjourn this meeting at 8:10PM. Mr. Poelaedomided. Motion carried 2-0.

Respectfully submitted,

Cheryll A. Hurteau
Administrative Assistant I

Robert A. Caron Richard S. Poelaert David R. Pendell, Jr.

Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes — August 4, 2008 — 20080804selpubmirb



Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes — August 4, 2008 — 20080804selpubmiry



